
CITY OF FERNDALE – HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA – U.S.A. 
AGENDA - REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: September 15, 2016 
Time: 7:00 pm 
Posted: September 8, 2016 

We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on 
this Agenda before or during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly 
address the City Council on any item of interest to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public 
comment time; however, the City Council generally cannot take action on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the 
City Council grants a longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would 
identify yourself with your name and address when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written 
information or access to the facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to 
the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE 
PODIUM, STATE YOUR NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR 
COMMENTS ONLY TO THE COUNCIL. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
3. ROLL CALL – City Clerk: Mayor Hindley; Councilman Mierzwa; Councilman Brower;

Councilman Brown; and Councilman Sweeney.
4. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION
5. CEREMONIAL – None
6. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA
7. STUDY SESSIONS - REPORT OUT
8. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any

matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items requiring
Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for
consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the Council that the item
came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent nature requiring immediate
action. This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all
speakers, with each speaker given no more than five minutes.)

9. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to be
routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a specific request
is made by a Council Member, staff or the public, the Consent Calendar will not be read.
There will be no separate discussion of these items. However, if discussion is required,
that item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately under
“Call Items.”)

a. Approval of Minutes of the August 18, 2016 Regular City Council
Meeting  ................................................................................................... Page 5 

b. Acceptance of Checkbook Register for August 1-31, 2016 ..................... Page 8
10. CALL ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

1
_________________________________________________



11. PRESENTATION
a. Salt River Restoration Project Update
b. Measure S

12. PUBLIC HEARING – None
13. BUSINESS

a. Consider Appointment of Member to Serve on the Planning
Commission ..............................................................................................       Page 12 

b. Resolution 2016-26 Adopting the Emergency Response Plan
Handbook ................................................................................................. Page 15 

c. Update on Francis Creek Bridge .............................................................. Page 35
d. Update on PG&E Bridge ........................................................................... Page 36

14. CORRESPONDENCE  ............................................................................................. Page 38
15. COMMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL
16. REPORTS

a. City Manager Report  ............................................................................... Page 48
b. Commissions and Committee Reports

i. Design Review Minutes ................................................................ Page 58
ii. Planning Commission Minutes .................................................... Page 59

c. Minutes from Joint Power Authorities (JPAs) and Reports
i. Humboldt Waste Management Authority (HWMA)

Minutes  ....................................................................................... Page 61 
17. ADJOURN

This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2.  
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on 

Thursday, October 20, 2016 in the City Hall at 7:00 p.m.  

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

2 
_________________________________________________



Section 1 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Section 2 
PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

Section 3 
ROLL CALL 

Section 4 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT OUT 

Section 5 

CEREMONIAL 

Section 6 

MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 

Section 7 
STUDY SESSIONS 

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

3
_________________________________________________



Section 8 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and 
over which the Council has jurisdiction. 

Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of the 
five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent nature 
requiring immediate action. 

This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

Section 9
CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  

Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? Those items will be considered separately under “Call Items.” 

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

4
_________________________________________________



  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California, U.S.A. 
DRAFT Minutes for City Council Meeting of August 18, 2016  

 
Mayor Don Hindley called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:01 pm. Those present 
did the flag salute. Present were Mayor Hindley, Council Members Ken Mierzwa, Dan Brown, 
Michael Sweeney and Doug Brower along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish, City Clerk 
Kristene Hall, and Police Chief Bret Smith 
 
Report out of Closed Session: None 
 
Ceremonial: None 
 
 

Modifications to the Agenda: None 
 
 

Report out of Study Session: None 
 
 

Public Comment: None 
 
Consent Calendar: There were seven items on the Consent Calendar for approval.  There were no 
comments on these items from the Council or the public.  MOTION: to approve the consent 
calendar.  (Mierzwa/Sweeney) Unanimous 
 
Call Items Removed from Consent Calendar: None 
 
Presentation: None 
 
Public Hearing: None 
 
Business: 
Resolution 2016-21 Authorizing the City to borrow Funds from Tri Counties Bank:  Mayor 
Hindley explained this is the annual renewal of the loan that was taken out for the Drainage.  
Councilman Brown asked if the mayor felt it was a fair interest rate.  Hindley replied it was a 
little high by about ¾ of a percent but the process of going out and obtaining a new loan was a 
lengthy process and may not be beneficial.  City Manager Parrish commented that the interest 
rate had gone down a ½ percent since last year.  MOTION to adopt Resolution 2016-21 
authorizing the city to borrow funds from Tri Counties Bank.  (Sweeney/Brown) Unanimous 
 
Adopt and Sign MOU with the County for FY2016-17 Measure Z Funding:  Mayor Hindley 
commented that this was a fairly standard MOU. Hindley explained it applied toward the funding 
under Measure Z that has the provisions for Police Officers, New Police Hires, something that 
goes on for a full year.  He commented that this is for the new repeater for Ferndale.  The 
reporting for the repeater, when purchased, will consist of sending the County an invoice and at 
the end of the first quarter showing them we sent in the invoice and that should be all that is 
involved.  Councilman Brown agreed with Hindley.  MOTION to Adopt and Sign the MOU 
between the County of Humboldt and City of Ferndale for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Measure Z 
Funding. (Brower/Mierzwa) Unanimous 
 
Request from Design Review Committee and Planning Commission for Funding to Amend the 
Penalties Section of the Design Review Zoning Ordinance:  Community Member Patrick 
O’Rourke commented that he thought it was a great idea to add a penalty for citizens that did not 
go through the proper processes.  Community Member Paul Gregson also commented that it 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

5 
_________________________________________________



didn’t necessarily have to be fines but maybe just denying any future permits to be issued until 
all previous non conformance had been rectified.  Mayor Hindley commented that this was just 
to approve funding to bring it back to the Planning Commission for the amendment process. City 
Manager Parrish commented that as of now there is no fee to obtain a Design Review Permit, so 
the penalty of doubling the fee is essentially not assessing any repercussion for not following 
through with the proper procedures. Councilman Mierzwa commented his concerns of citizens 
not obtaining the proper permits and going through the proper process especially in the historic 
district where an environmental or CEQA review may have to be done.  Mierzwa stated that this 
could potentially come back on the city.  Councilman Sweeney and Councilman Dan Brown 
commented on the brochure that was made, asking if it has been being distributed and if it was 
helping.  Community Member Paul Gregson replied that he had brought them to local 
businesses, realtors and the Library.  Gregson also commented that there are definite 
misconceptions on where citizens think the Design Review Zoning is.  Parrish explained that 
most people try to follow and abide by the rules, but there are a few that try to get around the 
process.  Councilman Brower stated concerns about spending money on what potentially could 
be lack of knowledge, but agreed there should be penalties for non-compliance.  Councilmen 
asked about the Fiscal Impact figure.  Staff stated it was the estimated cost from the Planner for 
amending the Ordinance.   MOTION to authorize funding for the Planning Commission to 
amend the penalties section of the Design Review Zoning Ordinance with the funding amount 
not to exceed $2320. (Brower/Brown) Unanimous 
 
Resolution 2016-23 Adopting a Conflict of Interest Code:  City Manager Parrish explained the 
Political Reform Act requires us to look at and make any updates needed every two years.  There 
were no comments from the Council or Public.  MOTION to approve Resolution 2106-23 
adopting a Conflict of Interest Code.  (Sweeney/Brown) Unanimous 
 
Update on Francis Creek Bridge:  City Manager Parrish informed the Council that he had 
received an email from the City Engineers stating they had received all the information from 
Ontiveros on the installation of the bridge and it should not take long for them to review.  Parrish 
stated all funds have been raised and the bridge will most likely be ordered when the City 
Engineers approve the installation.  Councilman Sweeney expressed concern about the 
construction around the Memorial Garden currently in place.  Councilman Brower recommended 
it be roped off during the construction process.  Mayor Hindley recommended approaching 
Martin Tubbs with the concerns about the Memorial Garden.  
 
Update on Bridge from PG&E:  City Manager Parrish presented the Council with letters from 
citizens regarding the bridge placement on Harrison Street.  Parrish explained the public works 
had went door to door on Harrison Street informing citizens before the arrival of the bridge.  At 
the time, no one had expressed any concerns.  Parrish explained to Council that the bridge is long 
enough to cross the creek that no permitting is needed from Corp of Engineers or Regional Water 
Quality Board.  Parrish stated that he and a representative from Fish and Wildlife had reviewed 
the bridge and stated the bridge was appropriate for that space.  Fish and Wildlife estimates a 90-
day permit process once the application is submitted.  Parrish stated the only hold up would be to 
make sure the bridge is engineered to public standards, as the bridge before was privately owned 
and used by PG&E.  Councilmen expressed concern for the citizens on Harrison street.  Parrish 
stated the possibility of a temporary fence and no trespassing signs to eliminate an attractive 
nuisance.  Councilman Sweeney agreed that a fence, as well as signage may help.  Councilmen 
agreed that it not an ideal situation but the end result will be an asset to the community for years 
to come. 
 
Correspondence:  Councilman Sweeney commented on the need to assist HWMA fill vacancies 
on their Zone Management Team. Staff will post a notices on the public boards and place on the 
website.   

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

6 
_________________________________________________



 
Comment from the Council:  Councilman Sweeney mentioned he had taken Councilman 
Brower’s place on the RCEA board.  Sweeney explained the Community Choice Aggregation 
and asked it to be placed on a future agenda for discussion.   Mayor Hindley explained they had 
already had a presentation on this at a previous meeting and there were a lot of unanswered 
questions.  Both Councilman Brower and Councilman Brown had concerns about automatically 
being enrolled and having to opt out of the program. No other councilman agreed to put this on a 
future agenda.  Mayor Hindley welcomed new City Clerk, Kristene Hall.   
 
Reports:  There were no comments from the Council or Public. 
 
Mayor Hindley adjourned the meeting at 7:47pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
 
 
Kristene Hall 
City Clerk 
 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

7 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

8 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

9 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

10 
_________________________________________________



Section 10 

CALL ITEMS 
 

These are items pulled from the consent agenda  
for discussion and a separate motion. 

 

Section 11 
 

  PRESENTATION 
a. Salt River Restoration 

Project Update 
 

b. Measure S      

 

Section 12 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

Section 13 
BUSINESS 

 
 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

11 
_________________________________________________



Meeting Date: September 15, 2016 Agenda Item Number 13.a 

Agenda Item Title Consider Appointment of Member to Serve on the Planning 
Commission  

Presented By: City Manager  

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion   Information 

Action Required:  No Action  Voice Vote x Roll Call Vote 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Consider appointment of Gerald Rocha to serve on the Planning Commission. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Planning Commission has been short a member since May 2, 2016. Previous Commissioner, 
Michael Warner resigned, resulting in this vacancy.  City staff advertised and posted notice of 
the vacancy with a ten-day window and a deadline of August 17, 2016 to receive applications. 
An application from Gerald Rocha was received and is attached. No other applications for the 
position were received. 

At its regular meeting on September 7, 2016, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to 
recommend appointment of Gerald Rocha to serve on the Planning Commission. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Gerald Rocha Application 
 

 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

12 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

13 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

14 
_________________________________________________



Meeting Date: September 15, 2016 Agenda Item Number 13.b 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2016-26 Adopting the Ferndale Emergency Response 
Handbook  

Presented By: City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council review and adopt Resolution 2016-26 adopting the Ferndale 
Emergency Response Handbook. 

DISCUSSION:  

At the November 2004 City Council Meeting, the council adopted Resolution 04-06 adopting the 
Ferndale Emergency Response Plan.  This plan consists of 220 pages that will assist the city in a disaster 
or emergency situation.  When a disaster or emergency occurs, it is good to have an easy first response 
handbook to reference during the initial chaotic hours of a disaster.  This handbook will provide easy 
access to contacts and management organizations during the initial response, and will be continuously 
update information as key personnel change. 

The Emergency Response Committee will review this handbook regularly and update contacts and 
organization as needed, to ensure the reliability of this handbook.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:    

None 

ATTACHMENT 
Emergency Response Handbook 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

15 
_________________________________________________



RESOLUTION 2016‐25 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 
ADOPTING THE FERNDALE EMERGENCY RESPONSE HANDBOOK 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale adopted the Ferndale Emergency Response Plan on November 
4, 2004; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city wishes to have a condensed version for easier reference in emergency 
situations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ferndale Emergency Handbook will be updated on a regular basis to include all 
current contact information for emergency personnel in the midst of a disaster. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Ferndale, that the City of 
Ferndale Emergency Handbook is hereby adopted as a reference guide in an Emergency for the 
City of Ferndale 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Ferndale Emergency Response Plan adopted on 
November 4, 2004 by Resolution 04-03 is in full effect and this handbook does not replace its 
integrity in any way. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on September 15, 2016 by 
the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 
Noes: 
Abstain: 
Absent: 
     ________________________________ 
     Don Hindley, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________ 
Kristene Hall, City Clerk 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

16 
_________________________________________________



 
(Updated: 8/09/2016 

Ferndale City Hall 
834 Main Street 

Ferndale, CA  95536 

(707)786-4224 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

17 
_________________________________________________



CONTACTS 

City Manager 
Jay Parrish 
Business: (707)786-4224 
Cell: (707)496-7005 

Police Department 
Bret Smith, Police Chief 
Business: (707)786-4225 
Cell: (707)498-0162 

Allan Billington, Sergeant 
Business: (707)786-4225 
Cell: (530)693-1301 

Public Works 
Tim Miranda, Public Works Director 
Business: (707)786-5040 
Cell: (707)834-2951 

Johnny Hoppis 
Business: (707)786-5040 
Cell: (707)599-9055 

City Clerk 
Kristene Hall 
Business: (707)786-4224 
Cell: (707)616-6941 

Finance 
Donna Timmerman 
Business: (707)786-4224 
Cell: (707)834-5424 

Building Official 
Arnie Kemp 
Business: (707)764-5042 
Cell: (707)599-6226 

Mayor 
Don Hindley 

Business: (707)786-9946 
Home: (707)786-2936 

Council Members 
Ken Mierzwa 

Cell: (707)499-5794 

Doug Brower 
Business: (707)786-4444 

Michael Sweeney 
Home: (707)786-9269 

Daniel Brown 
Cell: (707)498-2398 

Ferndale Fire Department 
Daniel Del Biaggio, Fire Chief 
Business (707)786-9909  Cell: 

(707)845-7399 

City Planner 
Stephen Avis 

Cell: (707)267-8651 

Waste Water 
Steve Coppini, Chief Plant Operator 

Business: (707)786-9694 
Cell: (707) 496-4694 

Shawn Gardner 
Business: (707)786-9694 

Cell: (530)586-2925 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

18 
_________________________________________________



Jay Parrish City Manager (707) 496-7005 

Kristene Hall City Clerk (707) 616-6941 

Bret Smith Police Chief (707) 498-0162 

Don Hindley Mayor (707) 786-9236 

Dan Brown City Councilman (707) 498-2398 

Stuart Titus OES (707) 845-1689 

Richard Conway OES (707) 498-8841 

Daniel DelBiaggio Fire Chief (707) 845-7399 

Andy Titus Ferndale Fire Dept (707) 496-8841 

Tim Miranda Public Works (707) 834-2951 

Jack Lakin Ferndale High School 

Renee Henderson Ferndale Elementary (510) 331-9567 

Wayne Shaw Handheld Radios 

Spencer Koch Hamm Radios 

(707) 502-7918

(707) 786-4964

(707)725-9702

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

19 
_________________________________________________



Disaster Procedures 

In the event of an emergency, the auditorium at City Hall will become an Incident Command 
Center.  This will be where designated individuals will meet to be given specific tasks, keep the 
public informed, answer incoming calls, communicate with the police and fire departments, and 
others as they may arise. 

This plan identifies the City’s emergency planning, organization, policies and response to 
extraordinary situations associated with natural disasters, technological incidents and national 
security emergencies.  This plan is based upon functions, not number of personnel.   

The City of Ferndale responds to disasters in four phases: Increased readiness, Initial response 
operations, Extended response operations and Recovery operations.  Once the City receives a 
warning or observes an imminent disaster, the City Emergency Services increases its readiness.  
This may include: briefing key individuals, reviewing the plan, increasing public efforts, 
inspecting critical facilities, recruiting additional staff, etc.   

The initial response operations are typically performed at the field level.  These activities may 
include: notifying proper authorities, disseminating warnings, conducting evacuations, caring 
for injured or displaced victims, assessing the need for mutual aid, coordinating with state and 
federal agencies, etc.   

Extended response activities are conducted in the field and the Incident Command Center.  
These operations involve coordination of management of personnel and resources.  This is in an 
effort to mitigate the disaster and transition into recovery.  These types of activities include: 
preparing damage assessments, operating care facilities, procuring resources, documenting 
status, protecting vital resources, declaring local emergency, etc.   

Recovery operations begins when the immediate threat subsides.  This includes recovery of 
services to the public and rebuilding the affected areas.  These activities may include: restoring 
utilities, establishing assistance centers, applying for state and federal assistance programs, 
identifying residual hazards, determining recovery costs, etc. 

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

20
_________________________________________________



INTRODUCTION 

The City of Ferndale (OA) Emergency Plan (EOP) identifies the City’s emergency planning, 

organization, policies, procedures, and response to extraordinary emergency situations associated 

with natural disasters, technological incidents, and national security emergencies. The plan also 

addresses integration and coordination with other governmental levels when required.   

This Emergency Plan accomplishes the following: 

 Establishes the emergency management organization required to mitigate any significant

emergency or disaster affecting the emergency operational area.

 Identifies the responsibilities, policies and procedures required to protect the health and

safety of Ferndale population, public and private property, and the environmental effects

of natural and technological emergencies and disasters.

 Establishes the operational concepts and procedures associated with field response to

emergencies, City Emergency Operations Center (EOC) activities, and the recovery

process.

This plan is based on the functions and principles of the California Standardized Emergency 

Management System (SEMS), the California Incident Command System (ICS), and the National 

Incident Management System (NIMS) which identifies how the Ferndale emergency operational 

system fits in the overall California emergency management system during response and 

recovery operations.  It is important to stress that this plan is based upon Functions, not the 

number of personnel. One person may be called upon to perform all functions, as needed.  In a 

major event, the duties of each function can be assigned to individuals as the staff size grows to 

respond appropriately to the event. 

The City of Ferndale Emergency Plan will be approved by the City Council. The City’s Office 

of Emergency Services (OES) is responsible for reviewing the entire plan on an annual basis, 

and coordinating the revision of the plan as required. Each department manager is responsible 

for reviewing its SOPs on an annual basis and coordinating the revisions of the procedures with 

the City’s Office of Emergency Services. Special Departments and other agencies serving City 

of Ferndale are responsible for following this plan, and developing procedures to fulfill their 

stated responsibilities. The City’s Office of Emergency Services will be responsible for 

maintaining records of revisions.  

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

21
_________________________________________________



CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 

The City of Ferndale response to disasters is based on four phases: 

 Increased readiness;

 Initial response operations;

 Extended response operations; and

 Recovery operations.

During each phase, specific actions are taken to reduce and/or eliminate the threat of specific 

disaster situations.  In coordination with the City and Incident Commanders, the Office of 

Emergency Services Coordinator will determine the phase and initiate the appropriate level of 

alert for response agencies, including the activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) 

as required.  

Increased Readiness 

Upon receipt of a warning or observation that an emergency situation is imminent or likely to 

occur soon, the City Office of Emergency Services will initiate actions to increase its readiness.  

Events that may trigger increased readiness activities include: 

 Issuance of a credible long-term earthquake prediction;

 Receipt of a flood advisory or special weather statement;

 Conditions conducive to wildland fires, such as the combination of high heat, strong

winds, and low humidity;

 An expansive hazardous materials incident;

 Information or circumstances indicating the potential acts of violence or civil

disturbance; and

 Information or circumstances indicating breach of national security.

Increased readiness activities may include, but not limited to, the following activities: 

 Briefing of  the City Manager and key officials  about the situation;

 Reviewing and updating of the emergency plan and related SOPs;

 Increasing public information efforts;

 Inspecting critical facilities and equipment; including testing warning and communication

systems;

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

22
_________________________________________________



 Recruiting of additional staff and Disaster Service Workers (DSW);

 Warning threatened elements of the population;

 Conducting precautionary evacuations in the potentially impacted area(s);

 Mobilizing personnel and pre-positioning resources and equipment; and

 Establishing or activating staging areas.

Initial Response Operations 

City of Ferndale initial response activities are primarily performed at the field response level. 

Emphasis is placed on minimizing the effects of the emergency or disaster. Field responders will 

use the Incident Command System (ICS) to organize response to the emergency or disaster, 

incorporating the functions, principles and components of ICS (i.e., unified command, action 

planning, span of control, hierarchy of command, etc.).    

Examples of initial response activities include: 

 Making all necessary notifications, including the Governor’s Regional Office of

Emergency Services;

 Disseminating warnings, emergency public information, and instructions to the citizens

of the City of Ferndale;

 Conducting evacuations and/or rescue operations;

 Caring for displaced persons and treating the injured;

 Conducting initial damage assessments and surveys;

 Assessing need for mutual aid assistance;

 Restricting movement of traffic/people and unnecessary access to affected areas;

 Establishing Unified Commands;

 Coordinating with state and federal agencies working in the field; and

 Developing and implementing Incident Action Plans.

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

23
_________________________________________________



Extended Response Operations 

The Ferndale Operational Area extended response activities are conducted in the field and the 

Emergency Operations Center (EOC).   Ferndale EOC is located in the City Hall at 834 Main 

Street. 

Extended emergency operations involve the coordination and management of personnel and 

resources to mitigate an emergency and facilitate the transition to recovery operations.  Field 

response personnel will continue to use the Incident Command System (ICS) to manage field 

operations. EOC staff will support field response personnel in mitigating the effects of the 

disaster. 

Examples of extended response activities include: 

 Preparing detailed damage assessments;

 Operating mass care facilities;

 Conducting coroner operations (as directed by the Sheriff’s Department and OA)

 Procuring required resources to sustain operations;

 Documenting situation status;

 Protecting, controlling, and allocating vital resources;

 Restoring vital utility services;

 Conducting advance planning activities;

 Documenting expenditures;

 Developing and implementing Action Plans for extended operations;

 Disseminating of emergency public information;

 Declaration of a local emergency;

 Prioritizing resources allocation; and

 Inter/multi-agency coordination.

SEMS/NIMS Functions: EOC staff will be organized in accordance with the five Standard 

Emergency Management System (SEMS) and the National Incident Management System 

(NIMS) functions: Management, Operations, Planning/Intelligence, Logistics, and 

Finance/Administration. The components and principles of SEMS/NIMS will be used by the 

EOC staff to manage disaster operations. EOC staff will establish measurable and attainable 

objectives to be achieved for a given operational period.  

An EOC Action Plan Will Be Developed For Each Operational Period. 

When the EOC is activated, communications and coordination will be established between the 

Incident Commander(s) and the EOC.  Communications and coordination will be established 

between the Humboldt Operational Area EOC, when activated, and the California OES Coastal 

Region REOC.  Multi-agency or inter-agency coordination will be used by EOC staff to facilitate 

decisions for overall local government level emergency response activities.  

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

24
_________________________________________________



Mutual Aid:  City of Ferndale is within the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services 

Mutual Aid Region II.  The mutual aid region facilitates multi-agency and multi-jurisdictional 

coordination, particularly between State OES and the Operational Area, including state agencies, 

local governments and special Departments, in emergency operations.  The Mutual Aid System 

is the system that allows for the progressive mobilization of resources to/from emergency 

response agencies, local governments, Operational Areas, regions, and the state with the intent of 

providing adequate resources to requesting agencies.  City of Ferndale is located in the State of 

California OES Coastal Region and is part of Mutual Aid Region II for Law Enforcement, 

Coroner, Emergency Medical, and Fire Services. Within the framework of the California 

Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual aid Agreement, several discipline-specific mutual aid 

coordinators will operate from the City of Ferndale Operational Area EOC, (i.e. fire and rescue, 

law enforcement, medical, public health, and public works). Mutual aid requests for these 

disciplines will be coordinated through the coordinators at the City Operational Area EOC. 

Once the City of Ferndale EOC is activated, communications will be established between the 

EOC and these discipline-specific Operational Area mutual aid coordinators. All other requests 

for assistance will flow through the appropriate Operational Area SEMS function.  The 

Operational Area, when requesting mutual aid will remain in charge and retain overall direction 

of personnel and equipment provided through mutual aid. 

Recovery Operations 

As the immediate threat to life, property, and the environment subsides, the rebuilding of City of 

Ferndale will begin through various recovery activities. Recovery activities involve the 

restoration of services to the public and rebuilding the affected area(s). Recovery activities may 

be both short-term and long-term, ranging from restoration of essential utilities such as water and 

power, to mitigation measures designed to prevent future occurrences of a given threat facing the 

operational area.  Recovery Operations overview can be found in Appendix C of this plan.  The 

Appendix covers the recovery process in detail, describing roles and responsibilities and 

procedures for accessing the federal and state disaster assistance programs that are available to 

individuals, businesses, special Departments, and the City. 

Examples of recovery activities include: 

 Restoring all utilities;

 Establishing and staffing Local Assistance Centers and Disaster Assistance Centers;

 Applying for state and federal assistance programs;

 Conducting hazard mitigation analysis;

 Identifying residual hazards; and

 Determining and recovery costs associated with response and recovery.

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

25
_________________________________________________



CONTINUITY OF GOVERNMENT 

The concept of Continuity of Government is comprised of three elements: Standby Officers for 

the Governing Body.  Temporary Seat of Government and the Preservation of Vital records.  

A major disaster could result in the death or injury of key government officials, the partial or 

complete destruction of established sets of government, and the destruction of public and private 

records essential to continued operations of government.  

Government at all levels shall be responsible for providing continuity of effective leadership and 

authority, direction of emergency operations and management of recovery operations.  To this 

end, it is particularly essential that the City of Ferndale, all Special Departments and Humboldt 

County continue to function as governmental entities.  The California Government Code and the 

Constitution of California provide the authority for state and local government to reconstitute 

itself in the event incumbents are unable to serve. 

City of Ferndale Director of Emergency Services 

The City Council has appointed a successor to the position of Director of Emergency Services.  

Should the Director of Emergency Services be unable to serve, Individuals who hold permanent 

appointments to the following positions in government will automatically serve as Acting 

Director, in the order shown, and serve until a successor has been appointed by the Council, and 

seated.  An individual serving as Acting Director will have the authority and powers of the 

Director. 

1
st
 Alternate: Police Chief

2
nd

 Alternate:   __________

3
rd

 Alternate: __________

Lines of Succession  

California Government Code Section § 8638, Article 15, Chapter 7, Division 1, Title 2 requires 

the appointment of up to three standby officers for each member of the governing body.  This 

article also provides for the succession of officers who head departments responsible for 

maintaining law and order, or for furnishing public services relating to health and safety.  

Additionally, Article 15 outlines procedures to assure continued functioning of political 

subdivisions in the event the governing body, including standby officers, are unavailable to 

serve.  The standby officers shall have the same authority and powers as the regular officers or 

department heads.  

The succession list complying with Article 15 for the City of Ferndale is provided in Ferndale 

Municipal Code, adopted by ordinance 267. 

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

26
_________________________________________________



Reconstitution of the Governing Body 

California Government Code Section § 8635 et seq., Article 15, Chapter 7, Division 1, Title 2, 

establishes a method for reconstituting the governing body. It authorizes that, should all 

members, including all standby officers, be unavailable, temporary officers shall be appointed by 

the Chairman of the Board of the County in which the political subdivisions are located or by the 

Chairman of the Board of any other County within 150 miles. 

California Government Code Section § 8642 of Article 15 authorizes local governing bodies to 

convene as soon as possible whenever a state of emergency or local emergency exists and a place 

not necessarily within the political subdivision. Under Article 15, the duties of a governing body 

during emergencies include ascertaining the damage to the jurisdiction and its personnel and 

property, reconstituting itself and any subdivisions, and performing functions in preserving law 

and order and furnishing local services. 

California Government Code Section § 23600, Article 1, Chapter 4, Division 1, Title 3 provides 

that the City Council shall designate one or more alternative temporary city seats within or 

outside of City boundaries (The city can not purchase real property for seats outside City 

boundaries).  A resolution designating the alternative City seats must be filed in appropriate 

City/County and in any alternative City/County.   Additional seats may be designated subsequent 

to the original site designations of circumstances warrant. 

The designation of a temporary alternative seat location of City government outside of City 

boundaries for the City of Ferndale is:   

1
st
 Alternate:

2
nd

 Alternate:

Preservation of Vital Records 

City of Ferndale City Clerk’s Office is responsible for the preservation and protection of vital 

records.  Each department within City of Ferndale will identify, maintain, and protect its vital 

records.  Vital records are defined as those records that are essential to the rights and interests of 

individuals, governments, corporations and other entities, including vital statistics, land and tax 

records, license registers, and historical information. 

Vital records also include those records essential for emergency response, recovery operations, 

including utility system maps, emergency supplies, equipment locations, emergency operational 

plans, procedures, and personnel rosters.  

These vital records will be essential to the re-establishment of normal City of Ferndale 

government functions, serving to protect the rights and interests of government. These rights and 

interests may include the constitutions, charters, statutes, ordinances, court records, official 

proceedings and financial records of the City of Ferndale. 

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

27
_________________________________________________



City of Ferndale Lines of Succession 

Department Successor Title/Position 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

City Manager  

Police Chief  

City Attorney  

Public Works Crew Leader 

City Clerk/Treasurer  

City Planner ____________________ 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE STANDARDIZED EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

SYSTEM And THE NATIONAL INCIDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

The City Operational Area (OA) is responsible for emergency response within its geographical 

boundaries. The California Emergency Services Act requires the OA to manage and coordinate 

the overall emergency response and recovery activities within its jurisdiction. During disasters, it 

is required to coordinate emergency operations with OES Coastal Region and, in some instances, 

other Operational Areas and local governments. 

Under the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS), and National Incident 

Emergency Management System (NIMS), the City has responsibilities at two levels: The Field 

Response and Local Government levels.   

At the field response level, all agencies will use the Incident Command System (ICS) to 

standardize the emergency response. 

At the City of Ferndale level, a designated Emergency Operations Center (EOC) is used as the 

central location for gathering and disseminating information, coordinating all jurisdictional 

emergency operations, and coordinating with the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services, 

Coastal Region EOC. 

The following diagram depicts the relationship between local governments, special Departments, 

the City of Ferndale Operational Area, and the State OES Coastal Region Emergency Operations 

Center (REOC).  

Police Chief 
Sergeant

September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

28
_________________________________________________



CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER

• THE STATE

COASTAL REGIONAL EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER

• THE REGION

HUMBOLDT COUNTY EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER

• THE OPERATIONAL AREA

FERNDALE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER

• THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT LEVEL

FIELD INCIDENT COMMAND POSTS
DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS CENTERS

• THE FIELD LEVEL

STANDARDIZED EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
FIVE LEVEL EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORGANIZATION

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

29 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting
_________________________________________________

30
_________________________________________________



Director of Emergency 
Services

Operations Section

Fire & Rescue
Fire Operations

EMS/Disater Medical
Urban Search & Rescue

HAZMAT

Law Enforcement
Law Operations

Coroner Operations
Search & Rescue

HAZMAT

Construction & 
Engineer

Utilities
Damage Assessment

Structural Safety
Public Works

Health & Welfare
Care & Shelter
Public Health

Air Operations

Staging Area 
Manager

Planning/Intelligence 
Section

Situation Analysis

Documentation

Advance Planning

Technical Services

Demobilization

Damage Assessment

Logistics Section

Communication
Communication Unit
Information Services

Transportation

Personnel

Supply Procurement

Facilities

Resource Status

Finance/Admin 
Section

Time Unit

Compensation & 
Claims

Purchasing Unit

Recovery Unit

Cost

CITY OF FERNDALE
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION

The Emergency Response Organizational structure is somewhat different than daily operations 
structure.  Each City department may be assigned the responsibikity for one or more functions 
listed in the emergency organization. Some departments normally operating independently will 
be consolidated under a single function.  Assignment of responsibilities is the function of the 
Director of Emergency Services or an appointed designee.

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

31 
_________________________________________________



CITY OF FERNDALE – Timesheet-Disaster 
DEPT PAYROLL 

PERIOD: FROM TO 

EMPLOYEE 

DAY DATE IN OUT TOTAL REG OT OTHER DESCRIPTION OF WORK LOCATION MATERIALS USED EQUIPMENT USED 
Note City or Rented 

TOTAL HOURS FOR WEEK ONE 

TOTAL HOURS FOR WEEK TWO 

TOTAL HOURS WORKED BOTH WEEKS 

ACCUMULATED TIME BANK INFORMATION 
OLD BALANCE HOURS EARNED HOURS USED NEW BALANCE CLERK’S INITIALS 

VACATION TIME 

VACATION AVAILABLE 

VACATION EARNED 

SICK TIME 

SICK TIME AVAILABLE 

SICK TIME EARNED 

OTHER 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

32 
_________________________________________________



EMPLOYEE ____________________________________________________  PAYROLL PERIOD ______________________________________________________ 

PAYROLL DATA 
DESCRIPTION AMT WITHHELD AMT I certify that I have worked the above listed dates and times and all hours worked are correct. 
REGULAR SALARY SOCIAL SECURITY 

OVERTIME PAY FED IC 

ON CALL PAY STATE IC EMPLOYEE’S SIGNATURE / DATE 

CERTIF. PAY DISABILITY 

OTHER PAY OTHER 

TOTAL PAY NET PAY SUPERVISOR’S SIGNATURE / DATE 

MATERIAL USED 

Vendor Description Location Quan. Unit Price Total Price 
Date Purch 
or Stock Date Used Invoice # 

CITY EQUIPMENT USED 
Make/Model/Size/Capacity/Horsepower Location Operator's Name Date Used Hours Used Equipment Rate 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

33 
_________________________________________________



EMPLOYEE ____________________________________________________  PAYROLL PERIOD ______________________________________________________ 

RENTED EQUIPMENT 
Rate per Hour 

Type Location 
Date 
used 

Hours 
Used w/op         wo/op 

Total 
Cost Vendor Invoice # 

Date 
Paid 

Amount 
Paid Check # 

CONTRACTOR 

Dates Worked Contractor Location 
Invoice/Billing 
# Amount Comments - Scope 

to 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENTS 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

34 
_________________________________________________



Meeting Date: September 15, 2016 Agenda Item Number 13.c 

Agenda Item Title Update on Francis Creek Bridge 

Presented By: City Manager                                               

Type of Item:  Action  Discussion  X Information 

Action Required: X No Action  Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive update from the Francis Creek Bridge Committee  
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
There are currently no paths or sidewalks from Francis St into Fireman’s Park.  Visitors access 
the park by way of a blind driveway with moving vehicles that travels around Scout Barn to into 
the Park.  Adding a footbridge over Francis Creek that connects Francis Street, Fireman’s Park 
and the Community Center will provide a safer route for school age children, tourists and locals 
and encourage people to walk to the park.   
 
At the June meeting, City Manager reported that the fundraiser held May 20 was a success and 
the committee believes enough funds have been raised for the project.  Final steps are under 
way.   
 
In July, permits from Department of Fish and Wildlife, Army Corps of Engineers and North Coast 
Regional Water Quality Control Board were approved.   
 
The Francis Street Pedestrian Footbridge Committee submitted a building permit application to 
construct footings in preparation for mounting the bridge.  The proposed project’s plans are 
under review by the Building, Planning and Engineering Departments.  A correction letter 
produced by the City Engineer covering five points of clarification related to potential impacts 
by a 100-year flood is being addressed.   
 
Once the plans are updated, the City’s review can be completed, a permit issued and 
construction can begin. 
 

Monthly updates were requested and will be given by the City Manager or a representative of 
the bridge ad hoc committee. 
 
. 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: None – Donor Funded 
 

 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

35 
_________________________________________________



Meeting Date: September 15, 2016 Agenda Item Number 13.d 

Agenda Item Title Update on Bridge from PG&E 

Presented By: City Manager                                               

Type of Item:  Action x Discussion   Information 

Action Required: X No Action  Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive and File 
 
DISCUSSION:   
 
The City became the brand new owners of a large footbridge which we successfully had moved 
by NorthCoast Fabricators from the PG&E plant at King Salmon to Harrison Street by Fireman's 
Park. We had recently cleaned this area with the help of Calfire and removed vegetation that 
had covered about 8 feet of the road. We thought this section of road was the most economical 
place to store the bridge temporarily because we would be able to stage the necessary crane to 
swing it into place without additional moves. Remember it is expensive to move this item and 
we are hoping that we can go through the permitting and engineering process with minimal 
delay. 
 
The bridge will need to reside there until the City is able to go through the permitting and 
engineering processes necessary to put it across Francis creek in an approved location from the 
Public Restrooms in Firemen's Park to the intersection of Harrison and Cleveland. Engineers and 
Planner are putting to gather and estimate costs for the project. It is estimated that this could 
take 6 months to a year. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  Unknown at this time. 
 

 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

36 
_________________________________________________



Section 14 

CORRESPONDENCE 

Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 

 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

37 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

38 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

39 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

40 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

41 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

42 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

43 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

44 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

45 
_________________________________________________



September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

46 
_________________________________________________



Section 15 
COMMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL 

 
Section 16 

REPORTS 
 

City Manager’s Report 
Commissions and Committee Reports 

Minutes from JPAs and Reports 
 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

47 
_________________________________________________



C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H u m b o l d t  C o u n t y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A  

City Manager’s Report for September 15, 2016 City Council Meeting 
Reporting to August 31, 2016 

 
CITY MANAGER 
Meetings 

• Kiwanis meeting 1st and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm 
• Salt River Watershed Council -  August 8th-  2:00-5:00  
• Met with NRCS State Official Alan Forkey re: Salt River and Sedimentation 

Management Area next to Wastewater Facility. August 9th.  
• City Council meeting – August 18st – Regular meeting from 7:00 – 9:30 pm 
• SRWC sub-committee meeting-  August 1st - 3:00-5:00 pm 
• City Manager meeting- August 18st– 3:00-5:00pm 
• Drainage Committee meeting- August 13th - 3:00- 5:00 pm 
• Dept of Fish and Wildlife- August 16th- re: Francis Creek maintenance, #2 bridge 

permits and ditch maintenance  
• Emergency Response Committee- August 17th- 2:30- 4:30 pm. - cancelled for Fair 
• Numerous conversations with Public Works to safeguard bridge on Cleveland St with 

fence and signage.  
• Public Works; Focus is still on drainage issues but have started looking forward to the 

dry months and improvements to our streets and roads and parks. Met with engineer 
to get all drainage ditches included in maintenance program, as our 5C ditch 
maintenance program had some places that were not covered.  Accomplished creek 
cleanup and this year it only took about one week. Kudos to the Hooligans volunteer 
group, who once again showed their character and support for the community by 
helping property owners control the vegetation along Francis creek and thereby 
reducing the potential for flooding during the rainy season. Super citizens! 

• Weekly training bulletin from ERMAnet. This is an online training program that I 
have participated in since 2006 as a requirement from our Risk Management 
Authority. 

• Monthly evaluations  
• Daily meetings and discussions and updates with Mayor and Council members 

regarding current issues and projects. 
• Numerous conversations with Chamber of Commerce President Karen Pingitore 

discussing business activities and issues almost on a daily basis. This last month we 
collaborated on the activities surrounding the replacement of downtown streetlights. 
They arrived on 29th and we inspected them as they arrived. We will start replacing 
them on the week of the 12th one at a time.   

• Continue to interview for Financial position and reorganize the office to take 
advantage of personnel. Donna Timmerman will continue as financial director until 
we fill that position. Kristene Hall has moved up to the City Clerk position and 
everyone is taking on more work to make up for the open position. 

• Numerous consultation with Financial Officer Donna Timmerman related to our 
budget. We had a study session before the last council meeting where staff and 
council discussed the budget and then during council meeting it was approved. The 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

48 
_________________________________________________



approved budget was positive and included a resumption of step increases for the 
employees. Although the budget was passed as negative last year, it looks like it 
should end the year as positive and kudos to our staff who went without step 
increases last year to help make that positive. 

• We continue to have Emergency Response and Drainage meetings monthly. These 
meetings go a long way in promoting cooperation and familiarity with the fire 
department, county OES, and the other agencies we work with during emergency 
situations. 

• Conversations with John Driscoll regarding Congressman Huffman and an update on 
Ferndale issues. Numerous conversations about the SRP and the pause in construction 
for 2016. I have met and had discussions with RCD personnel, SRWC staff and 
directors, government representatives, property owners, as well as council members 
and mayor on almost a daily basis. This situation has resulting almost daily 
interaction because of the dire consequences to the project if we are unable to reach a 
solution with the two property owners who have not agreed to sign on to the project. 
We are trying to have this accomplished sometime in October or look to some other 
remedy than negotiation. 

• Regular conversations and meetings with County Supervisor Bohn regarding 
common issues. 

• Numerous meetings with Salt River and Francis Creek land owners regarding their 
participating in SRRP.  Although we were not able to move forward with the project 
as designed we continue to understand the importance to the whole watershed and 
community and will continue to negotiate in the hope that they will feel comfortable 
in the coming months to join with their neighbors to support this very necessary 
project. I plan on having a number of meetings with Watershed representatives and 
Elias Sousa in the coming weeks in an effort to have him join with the rest of the 
property owners along Salt River and Francis Creek to finish this project without 
further delays. 

• Working on a number of grant applications related to drainage and reducing costs at 
the wastewater facility. Reducing costs at the wastewater facility is centered around 
our energy costs for our ultra violet disinfection system and running the plant 
optimally. We have already made improvements that are saving substantial energy 
costs and now are concentrating on our new wastewater permit (NPDES) and will be 
asking RWQCB to reduce our dosing (the strength of ultra violet rays that are used on 
our effluent for disinfection) requirements that will lower our costs even more. Met 
with our ultra violet manufacturer and have elicited their help in compiling our report 
to RWQCB to adjust our dosing requirements in the new NPDES permit nest year. 
We have sent effluent samples to analyze the proper dosing limits to be included in 
our amendment report.   

• I was contacted by Annje Dodd who has asked me if the city would consider another 
Humboldt State Capstone project that would allow the students to explore alternative 
energy solutions to reducing energy costs at the wastewater plant. they will probably 
bring a project to the council for approval in the coming months. I have had a number 
of conversations with Arnie Jacobson a professor who will be charge of the 
engineering capstone project and he has also met with our chief wastewater operator 
Steve Coppini to button up the program and goals. We continue to work on this. 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

49 
_________________________________________________



• Met with Caltrans on some sidewalk replacement activities in the near future. The 
improvements would be at the north end of town and would include some cement 
replacement in front of two properties and one decking replacement. The contractor 
showed three different sidewalk examples of color and texture and certainly showed 
that they are trying to match our sidewalks to the best of their ability. They were also 
trying to time the construction to have minimal impact on the fair activities and the 
beginning of school. This work was completed and the cement work matched pretty 
well. Very happy with the interaction with Caltrans. We had four meetings to go over 
the work and materials and I personally had conversations with the properties 
involved to mediate concerns. 

• Variety of interactions with business and property owners regarding building 
improvements to the downtown area and historical recommendations and 
requirements and procedures and processes to move projects along. Staff has 
participated on a number of improvements on Main Street that have added to the 
City's character without compromising our authenticity. The Pizza company's recent 
renovations are an example of working with property owner’s downtown to improve 
our overall character. The Lentz and Paine building renovations are major 
improvements and will greatly enhance that side of downtown Main Street. We have 
also been in contact with other building owners that are considering Main Street 
improvements. We should commend our staff, building inspector, planning 
consultant, Design Review members as well as Planning Commissioners who have 
taken our historical distinction seriously while promoting a helpful and welcoming 
interaction with building permit applicants and contractors.  

• We were recently informed that the RCD and the Salt River Eco-Restoration Project 
was awarded a $372,000 grant to include Williams Creek into a phased aspect of the 
SRRP. This is good news for the residents on Frog Ally. The California Ocean 
Protection Council's grant is to restore 2.5 miles of the Salt River floodplain, 
reestablish a connection between the Salt River and Williams Creek, and install a 
number of instream and wooden structures and riparian areas. 

• Bocce court resurfacing project was finished with us replacing the oyster shell with 
decomposed granite. All activities were completed with donated funds and volunteer 
efforts. This change should require less maintenance, better drainage, and a superior 
rolling surface. The bocce committee and bocce enthusiasts should be commended for 
maintaining and improving the courts and making sure that the courts and 
landscaping are a positive addition to our beautiful Fireman's Park. you should be 
forming your four-man team for the September 17th Kiwanis tournament.  

• Applied and submitted a CalRecycle grant before August 1st deadline. Also 
conducted and met with CalRecycle representative from Sacramento who I gave a 
tour around the City to inspect our solid waste and recycling program for compliance. 
I believe that he was pleased and impressed with our programs and will continue to 
support and recommend programs to lower our overall percentage of solid waste to 
our landfills. 

• Numerous meetings and conversations with Gerald Silva related to a land swap to 
remove the necessity of Russ Park visitors crossing his land to get to backside of Russ 
Park. Our previous city resident David Yarrington had done considerable Pro bono 
work on the lot line adjustment, and gave the City the recorded maps to go along with 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

50 
_________________________________________________



it recently. I have recently given the Silva's maps of the Park and surrounding area 
and will begin discussions of a lot line adjustment on Friday the 9th. 

• The Kiwanis' Bocce tournament Saturday the 17th. If you are not on a team, 
refereeing, watching, buying food, or supplying the music, you are probably not 
doing your fair share. :) 

CITY CLERK ACTIVITY 

Meetings  
• Meetings with City Manager regarding work activities and council agenda.  
• Attended:  

o Regular City Council meeting 8/18/16 
o Planning Commission Meeting 8/3/16 
o Design Review Meetings 8/11/2016  

• Wrote agenda items and compiled packet for:  
o Regular City Council Meeting 8/18/16 
o Regular Planning Commission Meeting 9/7/16 
o Regular Drainage Meeting 8/11/2016 
o Design Review Special Meetings for 8/11/2016 and 9/01/2016 
o Began agenda compilation for City Council meeting 9/15/16 

• Transcribed and drafted meeting minutes and uploaded meeting videos for:  
o Regular City Council Meeting 8/18/16 
o Regular Planning Commission Meeting 8/3/16 
o Special Design Review Meeting 8/11/16 

• Posted all meeting agendas and public notices on City Hall, Post Office bulletin boards 
and at the library.  

• Uploaded meeting packets to City website.   
• Met with office staff regarding office issues 
• Had monthly performance review with City Manager  

Projects  
• Work with front counter and telephones assisting the public, answering questions and 

information requests. 
• On-going communications with contract Engineers and City Planner about agenda items 

before the City Council and Planning Commission Meetings. 
• Calculated and collected fees for building permits and sent completed applications to 

Arnie to be checked  
• Met with Building Inspector to review plans and finals on 
• Sent and received emails daily. 
• Pick up and distribute City correspondence daily.  
• Organized and filed paperwork.  
• Signed and filed resolutions and ordinances of the City Council. 
• Filed approved City Council, Planning Commission, Drainage and Design Review 

minutes. 
• Inventoried and ordered office supplies 
• Processed checks, created revenue spreadsheet and deposit checks into the bank.  
• Responded to Public Records Act requests.  

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

51 
_________________________________________________



• Processed Parade and Encroachment Permits 
• Maintained minute, resolution, ordinance and agenda binders. 
• Contacted Mayor re: upcoming agenda 
• Read weekly ERMA bulletins  
• Updated 2016 Possessory Interests Spreadsheet. 
• Sent out Public Nuisance letters 
• Processed Election Nominee Packets  
• Finished Sewer & Drainage Assessment and emailed to County Assessors Office 
•     Sent Building Permit reports to Assessors office and Construction Industry Research Board 

 
FINANCE OFFICER ACTIVITY 
Tasks: 

• Reviewed resumes, scheduled interviews for the Finance position.  
• Assisted City Manager with interviews and candidate tests.  
• Continuing documenting finance department duties and tasks.    
• Meetings with City Manager – re: office issues 
• Prepared employee monthly and annual reviews.   
• Processed Payroll/Payroll Tax Payments  
• Processed Accounts Payable 
• Processed Accounts Receivables. 
• Reviewed ERMA and HR bulletins. 
• Assisted at the front desk and answered phones. 

On Going Projects: 
• Review and update job descriptions 

 
CITY PLANNER ACTIVITY 
Task 1 – General Planning 
• Attended Planning Commission Meeting 
• Met with City Staff 
• Responded to phone calls and e-mails 
• Monthly Staff Report 
• General Staff Coordination 
• email correspondence with City Manager and City Attorney 
• Research solar regulation 
• Review project application 
• Meeting with City Manager and City Clerk; research information for PG&E bridge project 
• Research for deferred public improvements 
• Prepared Planning Commission staff reports 

Task 2 – Reimbursable Fee Planning - None 
Task 3 – Special Projects - None 

Task 4 – Additional Authorizations – None 
Task 5 – General Plan Review – None 
 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

52 
_________________________________________________



CITY ENGINEER 
5C Roadside Ditch Maintenance 
o Background Information: The City requires periodic maintenance of the roadside ditches 

within the City limits. Last year, the City Engineer obtained all regulatory permits and 
authorizations from the US Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE), North Coast Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (NCRWQCB), and the CA Department of Fish and Wildlife (DFW) to 
conduct the annual roadside maintenance activities under the 5C Waiver program. Under the 
terms of the 5C waiver, the City Engineer is required to conduct a walkthrough, photograph 
the condition of the ditches and provide a report showing no impact has occurred to the 
permitting agencies. The City requested that the engineer research what would be required to 
also permit maintenance on the east side drainage ditch which the previous Department of 
Fish and Wildlife biologist requested to be excluded from the 5C permitting. 
 
• The August 16th DFW field visit to review the ditch is in the process of being rescheduled 

to a later date and is being coordinated by Public Works. 
 
Transportation Safety Funds 
o Background Information: Funds are being made available annually to address 

transportation safety issues (sidewalk accessibility, stop signs, crosswalks, etc.). Submission 
for funding must be based on documented traffic collisions or other issues. The City 
Engineer has attempted in the past to research collision data based on published records but 
was not able to locate any information. Recent discussions with the police department 
indicate that collision data must be retrieved manually. The City Engineer requests 
authorization to work with the police department to identify and document traffic safety 
hazards within the City and to coordinate with the County on current year and future 
available funding to address these hazards. Another potential stakeholder is the local school 
district as safe routes to school represent another safety issue. The intersection of Washington 
and Berding was identified as a location for a 4 way stop sign in preliminary discussions.  

o The City Engineer submitted exhibits and narratives to the County on August 8th for 
inclusion with the County’s HSIP funding request. 

 
Capital Infrastructure Program 
o Background Information: The City Engineer prepared a prioritization last met with the 

Streets Committee on March 8th and presented a list of streets and their functional 
classification. 

o The Streets committee indicated a desire to walk the streets with the City Engineer to 
verify condition and priorities. The City Engineer is waiting for this task to be 
scheduled. 

 
Fireman Park Pedestrian Bridge 
o Background Information: A citizens group has raised funds for a pedestrian bridge across 

Francis Creek south of the intersection of Cleveland Street and Berding Street. Structural 
plans and calculations were provided for review on May 4th. A review letter was issued on 
May 24th. 

o The City Engineer received revised plans and Dept. of Fish and Wildlife (DFW) Lake 
and Streambed Alternation Agreement (LSAA) and North Coast Regional Water 
Quality Board Notice of Applicability on August 17th, 2016. The plans were reviewed 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

53 
_________________________________________________



and a second comment letter was issued regarding comments not yet fully addressed 
from the first comment letter and additional requirements to fulfill the DFW LSAA 
conditions. The review letter was issued on August 31st, 2016. 

 
 
Fireman Park PGE Bridge Donation 
o Background Information: Pacific Gas and Energy (PGE) is de-commissioning and existing 

pedestrian bridge and has offered to donate it to the City of Ferndale. Per discussion with the 
City Manager, this bridge is planned to be located east of the parking lot east of the baseball 
field and would cross Francis Creek to the intersection of Cleveland and Harrison Street. The 
City will need to obtain the necessary permits to construct the bridge, obtain a survey, and 
design the concrete abutments to secure and anchor the bridge. 

o The DFW reviewed the site on August 16th with the City Manager. 
o Once authorization is received and the trees and brush are removed, a survey of the 

area can be performed to begin the design process. 
 
Russ Park/Silva Lot Line Adjustment 
o Background Information: The existing entrance to Russ Park off of Eugene Street falls 

within a private property. The City has been discussing an exchange of a portion of Russ 
park with the land owner to make the entire route into the park public property. The City 
Engineer was contacted to create a map with aerial background to allow the City to begin 
discussions with the property owner on what portions of the private property and Russ park 
could be traded.  

o The City Engineer has been coordinating with the City Manager on questions 
regarding the differences between the record of survey and County mapping as well 
as addressing question and concerns the property owner had relayed to the City 
regarding the lot line adjustment. 

 
Applications 
 
o Westfall/Witham Lot Line Adjustment/Subdivision (SD 1323) 

This project included a two parcel subdivision and lot line adjustment located off Rose Avenue. 
On September 18, 2013, the Planning Commission approved the Lot Line Adjustment for 
Assessor Parcel Numbers (APNs) 031-241-09 and 031-241-10 and a minor subdivision of 
APN 031-241-09. The Notice of Lot Line Adjustment and Certificate of Compliance was 
recorded on July 31, 2015.  The Parcel Map is currently under review by Manhard Consulting.  
Because project expires on September 28, 2015, the applicant requested an extension.  An 
extension was approved by the Planning Commission on November 4, 2015.  The review of 
the Final Map is complete.  The agent is working toward completing the conditions of approval, 
which includes preparation of an improvement plan and revising the final map.   
 
This minor subdivision would create two lots – Parcel 1 with an existing residence and Parcel 
2 which is an undeveloped lot. The driveway into the Parcel 1 has a sidewalk crossing that 
does not meet ADA code. The City Engineer has previously requested that this be addressed 
prior to approval of the Final Map. The City Engineer received the Improvement Plan to bring 
the sidewalk into compliance on August 17th, 2016. An email was issued to the owner’s agent 
on August 18th indicating general approval and providing direction that the City Engineer 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

54 
_________________________________________________



would recommend that the property owner repair the non-compliant sidewalk across the 
driveway into the parcel prior to approval of the Final Map. The owner’s agent has requested 
that improvements to Parcel 1 be deferred until development occurs on Parcel 2. This would 
be an atypical request as it would require a future homebuilder on Parcel 2 to fix a sidewalk in 
front of Parcel 1 which would also require a construction easement on Parcel 2. A formal letter 
recommending that the sidewalk be brought into compliance per the Improvement Plan prior 
to approval of the Final Map was issued on August 29th.  

 
o Chenoweth LLA (LLA 1513) 

This project includes a lot line adjustment (LLA) between APNs 031-091-06 and 031-091-
29.  The purpose of the LLA is to adjust the lot lines so the existing garage on APN 031-091-
06 will become a part of APN 031-091-29.  The agent was notified this application was 
considered complete on October 29, 2015.  The project was sent out for referral by the City 
Engineer’s office the same week.  The referral agencies have until November 13, 2015, to 
respond to the application.  The City Engineer’s office provided the staff report to the City 
Planner on December 14, 2015.  This project was approved by the Planning Commission on 
March 2, 2016.  The agent is in the process of addressing the conditions of approval.  Once 
the conditions of approval are complete, the project will be recorded. 

 
 
o Laffranchi/Woodward Minor Subdivison and Lot Line Adjustment (SD 1522/LLA 

1513) 
This project includes a two parcel subdivision and a lot line adjustment located off of 
McKinley Avenue.  The application was submitted on July 29, 2015, and revised on October 
15, 2015, to include the lot line adjustment.  The agent for this project was notified on 
December 28, 2015, after the requested additional information was provided to the City 
Engineer’s office.  The project was sent out for referral on December 30, 2015.  The staff 
report was completed on February 4, 2016.  This project was approved by the Planning 
Commission on March 2, 2016.  The agent is in the process of addressing the conditions of 
approval.  Once the conditions of approval are complete, the project will be recorded. 

 
Meetings and Committees 
 
o HCAOG Meeting 

o The TAC meeting for the month of August was cancelled. 
 
o City Council Meeting 

o City Engineer attended this month’s City Council meeting on July 20th. 
 
Reporting and Correspondence 
o Prepared monthly staff report. 
o General correspondence with City Staff. 
 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS  
• Monthly samples prepared and sent to North Coast Labs 
• Coliform to Fortuna each Tuesday, BOD each 3rd Thursday 
• Locate main depth at Eugene and Berding upon customer request 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

55 
_________________________________________________



• Shawn Gardner’s Grade 2 application sent, Grade 2 certificate received 
• OITs Gardner and Griggs performs lab tests daily to measure efficiency of plant 
• CPO discussed extension on sludge building project with Cecile Morris of state water board 
• Camera at 840 Herbert, no problem found 
• Monthly eSMR (electronic State Monthly Report) prepared and submitted 
• Trim trees along pond 
• Scrubbed launders on aeromod 
• Maintenance on UV lights 
• Cleaned gravel from grit chamber in front of bar screen 
• Moved irrigation to east side of Sousa property 
• Cleaned tube on belt filter press 
• 2 risers broken on east side of Sousa property, both repaired 
• Front gate chain oiled each Monday 
• Dewater for total of 14 hours 
• Meeting with city manager, Paul Gregson and Brian Villacorta of Trojan regarding reduction 

in UV disinfection 
• OITs Gardner and Griggs cleaned walls and catwalk 
• Unplugged INF pump 2 
• Turn sludge 3 times weekly 
• Total flows through the collection system for July were 5.2 MG. Of that .2 MG was pumped 

to the equalization pond. 
• Billed Rotorooter, Taylor Enterprises and Wyckoff a total of $5168 for the month of August. 

32 total dumps for total of 44,500 gallons 
• Influent flows that were treated through the facility totaled 4.8 MG for the month of August. 

Of that, .4 MGD was pumped to the pond. Average irrigation discharge to Sousa property was 
.112 MGD. 
 
 

PUBLIC WORKS STAFF ACTIVITY 
• Continued with monthly and daily duties. Such as, cleaning and maintenance of city's 

bathrooms, mowing of city's owned properties, cleaning of storm drains, keeping streets 
clear of debris and the maintenance of city's facilities. 

• Continued with weekly safety meetings. 
• Painted cross walks in front of Elementary School. 
• Painted stop bar's on 5th, 4th and A st. 
• Finished up annual Francis Creek clean up. 
• Had the garbage and recycle cans repainted around town. 
• Received new lamp posts for Main St. Will install in the following weeks. 
• Put up the Concord car show flags on Main St. 
• Two service calls for plugged toilets at City bathrooms. 
• Got a service call to help assist dispatching a deer that was hit by a car on Ocean Ave. 
• Finished up creek report for DFW. 
• Cleaned up curbs along Main St. 
• Assisted with soil testing for the Francis Creek Bridge by Scout Hall. 
• Submitted the paperwork to PARSAC for replacing the north fence at PW. 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

56 
_________________________________________________



                  
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

• Performing pre-employment background investigation on individual to replace Officer 
Tyler James. 

• New hire, Officer Robert Lindgren, is progressing through the field training program. 
• The police department responded to numerous calls for service at the Humboldt County 

Fair. 
• Police department staff continued monitoring downtown parking. 
• We have been placing the radar trailer at various locations where we have received 

speeding complaints.  
• Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions. 
• Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting. 
• Chief Smith attended monthly area training manager’s meeting. 
• The police department continues targeted enforcement of peripheral areas impacting the 

Ferndale quality of life.  

 

Police Statistics – for August 2016 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 
Homicide 0   
Rape (Attempted) 0   
Robbery 0   
Larceny 2  
Assault 2  
Burglary 0   
Vehicle Theft 1  
  
TOTAL 5 
SECONDARY CRIMES 5 

Calls for Service 169 

Reports Written 16 
  
  
Traffic Citations 10 
Other Citations 0 
Parking Citations 4 
Warnings 31 
ARRESTS 6 
AGENCY ASSISTS 13 
TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 1 

 
 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

57 
_________________________________________________



 City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 08/11/16 - 8:30am meeting 

 
 
Chair Jeff Farley opened the meeting at 8:32 a.m. Committee Members Marc Daniels, Ellin Beltz, 
and Diane Ostler were present along with Deputy City Clerk Kristene Hall. 
 
Approval of Previous Minutes:  MOTION to APPROVE the July 14, 2016 and July 21, 2016 meeting 
minutes.  (Daniels/Beltz) Unanimous    
 
There were no Modifications to the Agenda 
 
There was no Public Comments. 
 
406 Main Street:  The Design Review Committee was presented with an application to construct 
cornice above the Brown Street side windows on the building. Mr Chenoweth, owner of the 
property, spoke on behave of his project.  Committee Member Beltz commented that the style 
and material of the proposed bracket were not of the same time period of the building. Beltz also 
commented the material was not meant to withstand outside elements.  Committee Member 
Ostler disagreed stating the brackets would be protected by the overhang.  Committee Member 
Daniels disagreed with the brackets not being time period.  Daniels stated he recently worked on a 
building that had similar brackets.  Mr. Chenoweth stated he just wanted to enhance the Brown 
street side of the building because it was very plain. Beltz stated she would like to see the brackets 
at the top of the building duplicated and rescaled for the windows as they would be a better 
match for the time period on this building.  Chair Farley stated he would rather see the widows 
enhanced with these cornice then to have the windows left plain.  MOTION to make the required 
findings of fact listed in Attachment A to APPROVE the Design Review Use Permit, subject to the 
conditions of approval listed in Attachment B, to construct window cornice on Brown Street side of 
building only, using the approved materials and design. (Ostler/Daniels) 3-1-0 (Beltz) 
 
There was no Correspondence:    
 
Committee Member Comments:  Committee member Daniels asked about the time limits on the 
Design Review Permits.  Staff explained there has to be progress being made on the project and 
cannot sit dormant for longer than 180 days or the permit expires.     
  
Meeting adjourned at 8:55 am 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Kristene Hall, Deputy City Clerk 
City of Ferndale 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

58 
_________________________________________________



C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H um bo l d t  C o u nt y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A 
Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting of August 3, 2016 

 
 

Call to Order — Chair Jorgen von Frausing-Borch called the Planning Commission Meeting to 
order at 7:01 pm. Commissioners Ellin Beltz and Paul Gregson were present along with City Planner 
Stephen Avis and Deputy City Clerk Kristene Hall. (Commissioner Nielsen was absent.) Those in 
attendance pledged allegiance to the flag. 

2.0 Ceremonial –None 

3.0 Modifications to the Agenda – None 

4.0 Approval of previous minutes – Motion: To approve the minutes of the July 6, 2016 Regular 
Planning Commission Meeting. (Beltz/von Frausing-Borch) 3-0-1 (Gregson recused due to being 
absent at last meeting)  

5.0 Public Comment-None 

6.0 Business 
6.1 Solar Panel Guidelines for City of Ferndale-City Planner Stephen Avis discussed the July 6, 
2016 meeting where the Commissioners expressed interest in developing guidelines for the 
installation of Solar Panels/Shingles with the city limits.  Commissioners were provided with a 
copy of the California Solar Act.  Avis explained that the laws within the California Solar Act limit 
the ability to impose requirements for aesthetics.  Avis also explained that implementing 
guidelines and providing literature to local solar installers and citizens will help them make 
choices that would be more suitable for the historic and Design Review areas.  Avis also provided 
Commissioners with the differences and efficiencies of Solar Shingles and Solar Panels.  Avis 
explained that these efficiencies will fluctuate as more developments in technology emerge.  Avis 
explained to the Commission the approach he planned on taking to help develop the requested 
guidelines for the Design Review Committee.  Von Frausing-Borch expressed he feels that we are 
headed in the right direction on implementing guidelines based on the approach Avis laid out.  
Commissioner Beltz asked about the possibility of including in the guidelines that any solar panels 
not shading your neighbors.  Beltz also commented on the fire rating on panels vs. shingles.  Staff 
explained that building permits issued for solar system installs are now being approved by the 
fire department as well as the building inspector.  Commissioner Gregson questioned the 
California Solar Act and the inability to require adjustments to aesthetics that would decrease 
efficiency by 10% or increase the cost of the project more than $1000.00.  Gregson asked how 
proof would be obtained if needed.  Avis explained that the contractor/solar installer would 
submit two bids, the original and with the adjustments asked for by the Design Review 
Committee.  Commissioner Beltz expressed the need for the Design Review Committee and the 
implemented guidelines need to stay Advisory not compulsory.  MOTION: to continue to devise 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

59 
_________________________________________________



guidelines for the installation of Solar Panels/Shingles in the Historic and Design Review Zones. 
(von Frausing-Borch/Gregson) Unanimous  
 
6.2 Design Review Penalties-Staff explained the Design Review Committee has asked the Planning 
Commission to help devise more of a penalty for not obtaining a Design Review Use Permit before 
starting a project within the Design Review Zone.  Staff explained for budgetary reasons, the first 
step for amending an Ordinance would be to obtain funding authorization from the City Council 
for funding to implement staff time to work on the project.  MOTION: to ask City Council for 
sufficient funds to work on implementing penalties for non-compliance with the Design Review 
Use Permit application process. 
 
6.3 Building and Land Use Permits June 26, 2016-July 27, 2016-Staff explained the two permits 
issued; one re-roof and one new construction on Cream Court. 
 
6.3 Design Review Committee Report & Minutes-Commissioners had no comment. 
 
7.0 Correspondence- There was no Correspondence 
 
8.0 Commissioner Comments- There were no Commissioner Comments 
 
9.0 Staff Comments- Staff explained the Planning Commission Vacancy is still being advertised 
until August 17, 2016.  There has been an application submitted so that application will be 
presented at the September Meeting.  Planner Avis spoke about going to a conference in 
Pasadena that will be going over Historic Preservation.   
 
Meeting Adjourned at 7:35 pm 
 
Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
Kristene Hall 
Deputy City Clerk 
  

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

60 
_________________________________________________



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Jack Thompson, City of Rio Dell 
Natalie Arroyo, City of Eureka, Vice Chair 

HUMBOLDT WASTE  Adelene Jones, City of Blue Lake 
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY Sofia Pereira, City of Arcata, Chair 

Michael Sweeney, City of Ferndale 
Rex Bohn, County of Humboldt 

Minutes 
Thursday, July 14, 2016 5:30 PM 
Eureka City Council Chambers 
531 K Street, Eureka, CA 
 
Present: Jack Thompson, Natalie Arroyo, Michael Sweeney, Adelene Jones, Sofia 

Pereira, Rex Bohn (joined 5:39 p.m.) 
Staff:  Jill Duffy, Tyler Egerer, Brent Whitener 
Legal Counsel: Nancy Diamond 
 
Audio Recording of Proceedings: https://archive.org/details/AH-hwma_7-14-16 
 Recordings of the meetings of the HWMA Board of Directors are provided for information only, and 

should not be considered official records of the HWMA. The Actions of the HWMA Board of 
Directors are recorded below and, following approval by a majority of the members of the Board, are 
the official record of the Board’s actions for the meeting date noted above. 

 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call at 5:30 PM 

Chairwoman Pereira called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. A quorum was present and 
acting. 

2. Closed Session: None Scheduled

3. Consent Calendar
a. Approve Minutes from the May 12, 2016 HWMA Board of Directors Meeting.
b. Receive April Fiscal Year 2015-16 Financials
c. Receive May Fiscal Year 2015-16 Financials
d. Approve Letter to County Administrative Officers and City Managers within the

North Coast Recycling Market Development Zone seeking nominees to the
NCRMDZ Zone Management Team

e. Approval to Advertise and Distribute a Request for Proposal for Hazardous Waste
Disposal Services.

f. Approve Resolution 2017-04 Authorizing HWMA Executive Director to apply for
Beverage Container Recycling Grant(s) for Fiscal Years 2016-17 through 2021-22
solicited by the Department of Resources, Recycling, and Recovery (CalRecycle).

g. Approve Amendment No.2 to Agreement between HWMA and City of Rio Dell
for the Authority to continue providing California Integrated Waste Management
Act Compliance and Waste Reduction Services

Chairwoman Pereira opened the floor to public comment regarding the Consent 
Calendar. No comment was received. 
Chairwoman Pereira closed the floor to public comment. 

DRAFT

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

61 
_________________________________________________

https://archive.org/details/AH-hwma_7-14-16


Motion:  Director Arroyo Moved and Director Jones Seconded to Approve the 
Consent Calendar. 

Action:  Approve the Motion as made by Director Arroyo and seconded by 
Director Jones by the following vote: 

Ayes: Pereira, Arroyo, Thompson, Sweeney, Jones 
Nays: None 
Absent: Bohn 

4. Oral and Written Communications
Chairwoman Pereira opened the floor to public comment regarding items not on the 
Agenda. No comment was received. 
Chairwoman Pereira closed the floor to public comment. 

 
5. Receive Presentation by Aldaron Laird on Humboldt Bay Sea Level Rise Inundation 

Vulnerability Modeling, Mapping and Adaptation Planning & HWMA’s Facilities. 
The Board received and discussed the presentation given by Mr. Laird. 
 

6. Board Member Reports 
Reports were received from the following Directors: 

Director Thompson, City of Rio Dell, regarding the City’s proposed marijuana 
cultivation ordinance. 
Director Pereira, City of Arcata, regarding a short term recycling contract with 
Eel River Disposal. 
Director Jones, City of Blue Lake, regarding a City Yard Waste Collection Day 
being held on August 6th. 

7. Executive Director’s Report
The Board received and discussed an oral report from Executive Director Duffy.

8. Adjourn
Chairwoman Pereira adjourned the meeting at 6:35 p.m.
Next Meeting: September 8, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. at Eureka City Hall Council Chambers.

DRAFT

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

62 
_________________________________________________



 

Section 17 

ADJOURN 
 

September 15, 2016 
______________________________________________

City Council Meeting 
_________________________________________________

63 
_________________________________________________


	Agenda 9.15.16
	Section 1-7
	Section 8-9
	Draft CC Minutes 8 18 16-Approved
	Check Register Aug 2016
	Sections 10-13
	CS-PC Vacancy 9.15.16-Approved
	Rocha PC Application
	CS-Resolution 2016-25-Approved
	RESOLUTION 2016-25
	Emergency Response Final
	Emergency Response Plan 2
	Ferndale Emergency Response
	Five Level ER Response
	Sheet1

	OES Map (color)
	Emergency Organization Chart
	Sheet1

	Timesheet Disaster 2.pdf
	CITY OF FERNDALE – Timesheet-Disaster
	MATERIAL USED
	RENTED EQUIPMENT


	CS - Francis Creek Bridge-Approved
	CS - PGE Bridge-approved
	Section 14 - corres
	Corresp 1
	Corresp 2
	Corresp 4
	Corresp 5
	Corresp3
	Ken Rhoades Letter
	Sections 15 - 16 rpts
	CM Report 09.15.16
	CITY MANAGER
	     Sent Building Permit reports to Assessors office and Construction Industry Research Board
	UFINANCE OFFICER ACTIVITY
	Task 1 – General Planning
	Task 2 – Reimbursable Fee Planning - None
	Task 3 – Special Projects - None
	Task 4 – Additional Authorizations – None
	Task 5 – General Plan Review – None
	UCITY ENGINEER

	Applications

	08.11.16 DR Approved Minutes
	Approved PC Minutes 08.03.16
	HWMA minutes
	2a Minutes 7 2016

	Section 17 - adjourn
	CM Report 09.15.16.pdf
	CITY MANAGER
	     Sent Building Permit reports to Assessors office and Construction Industry Research Board
	FINANCE OFFICER ACTIVITY
	Task 1 – General Planning
	Task 2 – Reimbursable Fee Planning - None
	Task 3 – Special Projects - None
	Task 4 – Additional Authorizations – None
	Task 5 – General Plan Review – None
	CITY ENGINEER

	Applications




